CITY OF PALM SPRING

# CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN



Updated June 2020

# CITY OF PALM SPRINGS CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN

# Table of Contents

I.	INTRODUCTION	.2
II.	DEFINITIONS	.2
III.	SELECTION OF SUBRECIPIENTS	.4
IV.	CITIZEN PARTICIPATION	.4
IV.	PROGRAM YEAR	.7
V.	DEVELOPMENT OF THE CONSOLIDATED PLAN	.7
VI.	PERFORMANCE REPORTS	L <b>O</b>
VII.	ACCESS TO RECORDS	l <b>1</b>
VIII.	TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE	l <b>1</b>
IX.	COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS	L <b>2</b>
X.	BILINGUAL OPPORTUNITIES	13
XI.	ANTI-DISPLACEMENT/RELOCATION	<b>13</b>
XII.	MONITORING AND EVALUATION	<b>13</b>
XIII.	ASSURANCES1	13

#### I. INTRODUCTION

The City of Palm Springs has updated its Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) to ensure full compliance with federal regulations. Pursuant to section 104 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, HUD regulation (24 CFR 91 Subpart B), the City of Palm Springs is required to adopt a citizen participation plan that sets forth the City's policies and procedures for citizen participation. Through the implementation of the City's Citizen Participation Plan, the public will be given the maximum feasible opportunity to participate in the development of the Consolidated Plan, substantial amendments, and performance reports. Special assurances have been incorporated into the CPP to ensure participation of the following persons:

- Extremely low-, low-, and moderate-income persons, particularly those living in slum/blight areas;
- Persons living in areas where federal funds are proposed to be used;
- Residents of assisted housing;
- Low-income residents of target revitalization areas;
- Minorities;
- Non-English-speaking persons; and
- Persons with physical disabilities.

#### II. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions are presented to help the public understand some of the terminology frequently used in the discussion of housing and community development issues. Some of these terms include language taken from HUD regulations governing the Consolidated Plan preparation process and may be found under 24 CFR 91.5. The following list is not inclusive, but highlights important terms, which will aid in the understanding of HUD issues. An extensive glossary of HUD terms is presented in the City of Palm Springs Consolidated Plan.

Annual Action Plan (AAP) - A component of the Consolidated Plan Document, which highlights the activities to be conducted during a single Program Year in support of the priorities identified in the Consolidated Plan.

- Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) An annual performance report of all HUD-funded Community Planning and Development Programs (CDBG, HOME, ESG, and HOPWA).
- Consolidated Program Year (see also Program Year) The twelve-month period for implementing the CDBG, HOME, ESG, and HOPWA programs. The Program Year shall run for a twelve-month period and begin on the first calendar day of a month.
- Cost Burden The extent to which gross housing costs, including utility costs exceed 30 percent of gross income, based on data available from the U.S. Census Bureau.

- Elderly Person A person who is at least 62 years of age.
- Extremely Low- Income Household A household whose income does not exceed 30 percent of the median family income for the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA Metropolitan Statistical Area.
- Large Family Family of five or more persons.
- Low-Income Household A household whose income does not exceed 50 percent of the median family income for the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA Metropolitan Statistical Area.
- Low- and Moderate-Income Neighborhood A census block group(s) in which a minimum of 51 percent of the residents have an income not exceeding 80 percent of the median income for the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA Metropolitan Statistical Area.
- Moderate-Income Household A household whose income does not exceed 80 percent of the median family income for the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA Metropolitan Statistical Area.
- Program Year The City of Palm Springs has defined the Program Year as July 1 through June 30. The Program Year also corresponds with the City's fiscal year.
- Slum or Blighted Area An area which meets a definition of a slum, blighted, deteriorated, or deteriorating area under State or local law typically identified as Redevelopment Project Areas, or where there is a substantial number of deteriorating or dilapidated buildings or improvements throughout the area.
- Substantial Change For the purpose of the Consolidated Plan, a "substantial change" is defined as follows:
  - a) an increase or decrease greater than 100% of the activity allocation if the allocation is \$50,000 or more as listed in a published Consolidated Plan, or as amended; or
  - b) an increase or decrease greater than \$50,000 of the activity allocation if the allocation is less than \$50,000 as listed in a published Consolidated Plan or amended; or
  - c) an increase or decrease in an activity allocation greater than \$300,000; or
  - d) a new activity not previously identified in the Consolidated Plan

The program administration activity category is not subject to the allocation limitations defined under substantial change.

#### III. SELECTION OF SUBRECIPIENTS

The City will choose a sub-recipient by identifying a pool of qualified organizations. This can be done informally, through discussions with knowledgeable community sources or through the internal information that the City has acquired.

From this pool, the City will identify the qualified organizations to carry out a desired CDBG activity and approach them directly to determine their interest and suitability for the work. The City will either solicit an application from the organization for the work to be undertaken or to move directly to negotiate a written Agreement.

The City Council makes the final determination about how the CDBG funds are allocated. The City Council holds at least one public hearing, as the second required public hearing, to consider and recommend approval

#### IV. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

This Citizen Participation Plan sets forth the City of Palm Springs's policies and procedures for citizen participation. Listed below are the components that are designed to encourage citizen participation.

#### A. PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS

To provide for and encourage citizen participation, the City has established the following publication requirements:

#### 1. Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan

The City will publish a summary of the proposed Consolidated Plan and/ or Annual Action Plan in a paper of general circulation as a public notice. The published summary will describe the following items:

- a) the purpose of the Consolidated Plan; and
- b) a list of the locations where the copies of the entire proposed Consolidated Plan may be reviewed.

Copies of the entire proposed Consolidated Plan will be available for public review at the following locations:

Palm Springs City Hall
Community and Economic Development Department
3200 East Tahquitz Canyon Way
Palm Springs, CA 92262

#### And

Palm Spring Main Library Reference Desk 300 South Sunrise Way Palm Springs, CA 92262

The proposed Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan will be available for public review for a minimum of thirty (30) days. In addition, copies of the plan will be made available at City Hall and the Main Library.

At the direction of the City Manager and as authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City reserves the option of making both documents available only on the City Website, and for public review for a minimum of five (5) days.

# 2. Public Hearings

The City of Palm Springs will conduct a minimum of two public hearings during different stages of each program year. One of the required public hearings will be conducted prior to the publication of the proposed Consolidated Plan and Action Plan.

All public hearing notices will be placed as a legal notice in The Desert Sun Newspaper, as the publication of general circulation publication, for a minimum of five days prior to the hearing date.

At the direction of the City Manager and as authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City reserves the option of using web-based Virtual Public Hearings.

#### Substantial Amendments to the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan

Citizens will be provided with a reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on substantial amendments. All substantial amendments will be published as display advertisements in a paper of general circulation and will provide for a 30-day review period. The City will consider any comments received in writing, or orally at public hearings, if any, regarding substantial amendments. A summary of these comments or views, and a summary of any comments or views not accepted and the reasons, therefore, shall be attached to the substantial amendment of the Consolidated Plan. No substantial amendment will be implemented prior to 30-day public comment period.

At the direction of the City Manager and as authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City reserves the option of making Substantial Amendments available only on the City Website, and for public review for a minimum of five (5) days.

Upon City Council approval of the substantial amendment, the City will make the approved amendment public and will notify HUD. A copy of each substantial amendment will be sent to HUD as it occurs. Letters transmitting copies of substantial amendments will be signed by the official representative of the City authorized to take such action.

## 4. Performance Reports

Citizens will be afforded the ability to comment on performance report. The City will publish a summary of the draft Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) in a paper of general circulation. The published summary will be a legal notice and will describe the following items:

- a) the purpose of the CAPER; and
- b) a list of the locations where copies of the draft CAPER may be reviewed.

Copies of the entire draft CAPER will be available for public review at the following locations:

Palm Springs City Hall
Community and Economic Development Department
3200 East Tahquitz Canyon Way
Palm Springs, CA 92262

And

Palm Spring Main Library Reference Desk 300 South Sunrise Way Palm Springs, CA 92262

The City will consider any comments or views from citizens received in writing, or orally at public hearings, if any, in preparing the CAPER. A summary of these comments or views shall be summarized and attached to the final CAPER.

The draft CAPER will be available for public review for a minimum of 15 days. In addition, copies of the CAPER will be made available at City Hall and Main Library.

At the direction of the City Manager and as authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City reserves the option of making Performance Reports available only on the City Website, and for public review for a minimum of five (5) days

#### IV. PROGRAM YEAR

The City of Palm Springs operates the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) programs on an annual schedule from July 1st - June 30th. The Program Year as it relates to citizen participation is divided into three phases:

- Development of the Consolidated Plan
- Amendments, and
- Performance Reports.

# V. DEVELOPMENT OF THE CONSOLIDATED PLAN

This phase includes:

- Consultation;
- Public hearing(s);
- Preparation of proposed Consolidated Plan; and Submission of Consolidated Plan to HUD.

# Consultation

The City of Palm Springs will consult with other public and private agencies in the development of the Consolidated Plan to assist in identifying needs and resources available within Palm Springs and surrounding communities. Outside agencies that provide assisted housing, health services, and social services will be consulted, including but not limited to the following agencies:

- Public Health Organizations/Child Welfare Agencies
- Adjacent Local Governments
- Public Housing Agency

#### **Public Hearing**

The City of Palm Springs will conduct a public hearing prior to the publication of the proposed Consolidated Plan. In an effort to encourage public participation, the City may conduct public hearings in a community forum setting.

The City of Palm Springs will conduct public hearings at a location and time that are convenient to the public, especially those persons affected by program resources. In addition, public meetings will be held at locations equipped to accommodate persons with physical disabilities. Translation services will be provided to non-English speaking persons upon advance requests. Citizens and other organizations are urged to contact the City at least 48 hours' notice prior to a public hearing if they will need translation services, handicapped services, or other special assistance.

At the direction of the City Manager and as authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City reserves the option of using web-based Virtual Public Hearings.

A Public Notice will be placed as a legal notice in the Desert Sun, as a general circulation publication, for a minimum of five (5) days prior to any public hearing.

#### Preparation of the Proposed Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan

All comments received at the public hearing(s) conducted prior to the publication of the proposed Consolidated Plan will be considered in preparation of the proposed Consolidated Plan.

Upon completion of the proposed Consolidated Plan, the City will publish a summary of the proposed Consolidated Plan in a paper of general circulation. The published summary will describe the following items:

- a. the purpose of the Consolidated Plan; and
- b. will include a list of the locations where the copies of the entire proposed Consolidated Plan may be examined.

Copies of the entire proposed Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan will be available for public review at the following locations:

Palm Springs City Hall
Community and Economic Development Department
3200 East Tahquitz Canyon Way
Palm Springs, CA 92262

And

Palm Spring Main Library Reference Desk 300 South Sunrise Way Palm Springs, CA 92262

The proposed Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan will be available for public review. In addition, a reasonable number of free copies of the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan will be made available to citizens and groups upon request.

At the direction of the City Manager and as authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City reserves the option of making both documents available only on the City Website, and for public review for a minimum of five (5) days.

### Submission of the Consolidated Plan (Five-Year and Annual Action Plan) to HUD

After the conclusion of the public review period, City Council will adopt the Consolidated Plan pursuant to HUD regulations and will direct staff to prepare a final Consolidated Plan or other relevant document. A summary of all comments or views, and a summary of any comments or views not accepted and the reasons, therefore, shall be attached to the final Consolidated Plan. The final Consolidated Plan will be submitted to HUD in early May pursuant to regulations.

#### Amendments

The City shall amend the approved Consolidated Plan use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds whenever one of the following decisions is made:

- to make a change in allocation priorities, or a change in the method of the distribution of funds;
- to carry-out an activity, using funds from any program covered by the Consolidated Plan (including program income), not previously described in the action plan of the Consolidated Plan, or;
- to change the purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries of an eligible activity

# Criteria for a "substantial change" is:

- an increase greater than 100% of the activity allocation if the allocation is \$50,000 or more as listed in a published Consolidated Plan; or
- an increase greater than \$50,000 of the activity allocation if the allocation is less than \$50,000 as listed in a published Consolidated Plan, or as amended; or
- an increase or decrease in an activity allocation greater than \$300,000; or
- a new activity not previously described in a published Consolidated Plan, or as amended

All substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan are subject to the CPP and will follow the publication requirements as stated earlier in this document. The City will publish a public notice in a paper of general circulation to solicit public comment on any substantial amendment. The City will consider any comments received in writing regarding substantial amendments. A summary of these comments or views, and a summary of any comments or views not accepted and the reasons, therefore, shall be attached to the substantial amendment of the Consolidated Plan. No substantial amendment will be implemented prior to a public comment period.

All substantial amendments shall be approved by City Council. Upon City Council approval of a substantial amendment, the City will make the approved amendment public and will notify HUD. A copy of each substantial amendment will be sent to HUD as it occurs. Letters

transmitting copies of substantial amendments will be signed by the official representative of the City authorized to take such action.

#### VI. PERFORMANCE REPORTS

# Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report

The City annually reviews and reports, in a form prescribed by HUD, on the progress it has made in carrying out its strategic plan and action plan. The Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) includes a description of the resources made available, the investment of available resources, the geographic distribution and location of investments, the families and persons assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of persons assisted, actions taken to affirmatively further fair housing, and other actions indicated in the strategic plan and action plan.)

The City will publish a summary of the draft CAPER as a display advertisement in a paper of general circulation. The published summary will describe the following items:

- a) the contents and purpose of the CAPER; and
- b) a list of locations where copies of the draft CAPER may be examined.

Copies of the entire draft CAPER will be available for public review at the following locations:

Palm Springs City Hall
Community and Economic Development Department
3200 East Tahquitz Canyon Way
Palm Springs, CA 92262

And

Palm Spring Main Library Reference Desk 300 South Sunrise Way Palm Springs, CA 92262

The City will consider any comments or views of citizens received in writing, or orally at public hearings in preparing the CAPER. A summary of these comments or views shall be attached to the CAPER.

The draft CAPER will be available for public review for a minimum of 15 days prior to submission. In addition, copies of the CAPER will be made available at City Hall.

At the direction of the City Manager and as authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City reserves the option of making the CAPER available only on the City's Website, and for public review for a minimum of five (5) days.

# Submission of Performance Reports to HUD

The City will submit the CAPER to HUD in late September pursuant to HUD regulations.

#### VII. ACCESS TO RECORDS

The City will ensure timely and reasonable access to information and records related to:

- the development of the Consolidated Plan; and
- CDBG program expenditures for the past five years.

Information to be made available includes the following items:

- adopted Consolidated Plan;
- substantial amendments;
- performance reports;
- meeting minutes; and
- public comments

Requests for information and records must be made to the City Clerk's Office in writing. Upon a request for a copy of records, shall, within ten days from receipt of the request, determine whether the request, in whole or in part, seeks copies of disclosable public records in the possession of the agency and shall promptly notify the person making the request of the determination and the reasons therefore. In unusual circumstances, the time limit prescribed in this section may be extended by written notice by the head of the agency or his or her designee to the person making the request, setting forth the reasons for the extension and the date on which a determination is expected to be dispatched. Upon request, these items will also be made available in a form accessible to persons with disabilities.

#### VIII. TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

Each year the City will conduct a technical assistance workshop on the CDBG funding application submittal process.

While attendance, in person or virtual, at the technical assistance workshop is not mandatory, persons, groups and agencies interested in applying for funds will be strongly encouraged to attend. The workshop is intended to familiarize persons on the eligibility requirements of the

CDBG funding program. City staff will also describe the Request for Proposal forms, the application review, and approval process.

#### IX. COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS

### **Comments**

Citizens or units of general local government are encouraged to state or submit their comments in the development of the Consolidated Plan, substantial amendments, and annual program performance reports. Written and verbal comments received virtually, at public hearings or during the comment period, will be considered and summarized, and included as an attachment to the appropriate document. Every effort will be made to respond within fifteen (15) business days in writing to those who submit written proposals or comments.

Current copies of the complete final Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plan, substantial amendments, and annual performance reports are available at the following locations:

Palm Springs City Hall
Community and Economic Development Department
3200 East Tahquitz Canyon Way
Palm Springs, CA 92262

And

Palm Spring Main Library Reference Desk 300 South Sunrise Way Palm Springs, CA 92262

At the direction of the City Manager and as authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City reserves the option of making the Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plan, substantial amendments, and annual performance reports available only on the City's Website.

#### 2. Complaints

The City of Palm Springs will respond within 15 days (when practicable) to all written complaints received regarding the regarding the Consolidated Plan, Consolidated Plan activities, substantial amendments, and/or annual performance reports.'

The City will accept written complaints provided they specify:

- (1) The description of the objection, supporting facts and data.
- (2) Provide name, address, telephone number, and a date of complaint.

#### X. BILINGUAL OPPORTUNITIES

Translation services will be provided at public hearings wherever a significant number of very low- and low-income persons or residents of blighted neighborhoods speak and read a primary language other than English. Translation services must be requested at least 5 working days in advance.

# XI. ANTI-DISPLACEMENT/RELOCATION

In the event that any residential displacement and relocation will result from program activity, the City of Palm Springs ensures that, prior to carrying out the program activity, the City it will develop an Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan in connection with the program activity.

In the event that any acquisition and relocation must take place in order to carry out a program activity. Palm Springs will also comply with the acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1070, as amended and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24.

#### XII. MONITORING AND EVALUATION

The City of Palm Springs Community and Economic Development Department or its designee is responsible for monitoring activities implemented as part of the Consolidated Plan. The Agency will perform monitoring of all activities to ensure compliance with requirements of the programs involved, including minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning requirements.

#### XIII. ASSURANCES

Palm Springs's CPP is made available to the public and upon request; reasonable efforts are made to make the CPP available in a format accessible to person with disabilities. Amendments and revisions to the CPP require City Council approval. Prior to City Council approval, the draft revised CPP is made available for public review in a manner similar to any other substantial amendment.